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I. STATEMENT

1. This is a civil penalty assessment proceeding brought by the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff) against the Respondent, Ralph Elsell, doing business as Ralph Limousine Service (Ralph Limousine).

2. In Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 75192, Staff alleges that Ralph Limousine has violated various portions of the October 1, 1998 edition of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Chapter III.  These regulations have been incorporated into the Commission’s Rules Regulating Safety for Motor Vehicle Carriers and Establishing Civil Penalties (Safety Rules), 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-15, by 4 CCR 723-15-2.1.

3. In CPAN No. 75192, Staff alleges that between April 25, 2005 through May 26, 2005, Ralph Limousine violated 49 CFR Part 391.51(a) on one occasion (Count 1), 49 CFR Parts 396.3(b)(1) on two occasions (Counts 2 through 3), 49 CFR Parts 396.3(b)(2) on two occasions (Counts 4 through 5), and 49 CFR Part 396.11(a) on five occasions (Counts 6 through 10).  See, Exhibit 2.  The subject CPAN seeks imposition of a civil penalty in the amount of $2,000.00 for these alleged violations.  

4. On July 12, 2005, the Commission issued an Order Setting Hearing and Notice of Hearing setting a hearing in this matter for August 29, 2005, in Denver, Colorado.  

5. The undersigned Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) called the matter for hearing at the assigned time and place.  Staff appeared through counsel and Ralph Limousine appeared through its owner, Mr. Ralph Elsell.  During the course of the hearing, Exhibits 1 and 2 were identified, offered, and admitted into evidence.  Mr. Ted Barrett, a Senior Compliance Investigator with the Commission, testified in support of the allegations contained in CPAN No. 75192.  Mr. Elsell testified on behalf of Ralph Limousine.

6. In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the undersigned now transmits to the Commission the record and exhibits in this proceeding along with a written recommended decision.

II. findings of fact

7. Ralph Limousine is a luxury limousine carrier with Commission Authority No. LL-00836, and is subject to the Commission’s Rules Regulating Safety for Motor Vehicle Carriers and Establishing Civil Penalties, 4 CCR 723-15.  Rule 2.1 of those rules, in part, incorporates by reference federal requirements relating to motor vehicle carriers found at Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (revised as of October 1, 1998).

8. On June 10, 2005, Mr. Barrett conducted a Safety and Compliance Review (Audit) of Ralph Limousine.  At that time, he reviewed the books and records maintained by the company and determined that it had failed to comply with certain recordkeeping requirements imposed on motor carriers by the Safety Rules.  The Audit included those violations alleged in CPAN No. 75192. 

9. The Audit indicated that Ralph Limousine failed to maintain driver qualification files for driver R. Elsell, failed to demonstrate compliance with 49 CFR Part 396.3(b)(1) (failing to maintain identification for a 1995 Lincoln and a 2003 Lincoln), failed to demonstrate compliance with 49 CFR Part 396.3(b)(2) (failing to maintain a maintenance plan), and failed to demonstrate compliance with 49 CFR Part 396.11(a) (failing to prepare vehicle inspection reports).

10. Mr. Barrett prepared CPAN No. 75192 shortly after completing the Audit.  He served it on Ralph Elsell on June 27, 2005.  See, Exhibit 2, page 2.

11. Mr. Barrett presented the Certification of Correction signed by Mr. Elsell following a prior Safety and Compliance Audit in 2002 (1 page), attached to the Transportation Safety and Compliance Review (3 pages). See Exhibit 1.  

12. Mr. Elsell offered conflicting testimony regarding current and prior recordkeeping practices.  First, he testified that he maintained notebooks in 2002 and that he was told the notebooks were “fine” in 2002.  Despite testimony regarding the prior audit and Certification of Correction, he testified that he has kept his records in the same manner since he started doing business six years ago.  Finally, he testified that he had corrected his files and that he keeps his logbook consistent with prior practice.  Mr. Elsell stated that he cannot afford the fine and that he needs to support his family.  Upon cross examination, Mr. Elsell admitted that he prepared additional file documentation after June 10, 2005.

III. discussion 

13. A carrier providing luxury limousine service is a motor vehicle carrier exempt from regulation as a public utility, as defined in § 40-16-101(4)(a), C.R.S.  However, such exempt carriers are subject to the Safety Rules.  See, § 40-16-105, C.R.S., and 4 CCR 723-15-1.  The Safety Rules incorporate the 1998 edition of 49 CFR Part 391.  See, 4 CCR 723-15-2.1.  Therefore, Ralph Limousine is subject to the Safety Rules and its intentional violation of the same subjects it to civil penalties of up to $200.00 per day under 4 CCR 723-15.12.5.  See also, § 40-7-113(1)(g), C.R.S., § 40-7-115, C.R.S., and § 40-7-112(1), C.R.S.  Although an intentional violation may be proven by other means, a carrier is deemed to have intentionally violated a provision of the Safety Rules if, after having been issued a written notice of violation, it violates the same provision again.  See, 4 CCR 723-15-12.10.     

14. Commission enforcement personnel have authority to issue CPANs under § 40-7-116, C.R.S.  That statute provides that the Commission has the burden of demonstrating a violation by a preponderance of the evidence. 

15. Mr. Barrett conducted a Safety and Compliance Review of Ralph Limousine on June 10, 2005.  That review consisted of examining Ralph Limousine’s records to determine Ralph Limousine’s compliance with applicable safety regulations.  Based upon that review, Mr. Barrett issued CPAN No. 75192, which alleges that, between April 25, 2005 and May 26, 2005, Ralph Limousine committed ten violations of Commission rules.

16. At hearing, Mr. Barrett confirmed his findings that Ralph Limousine had violated Commission rules in the 2005 Safety and Compliance Review as alleged in CPAN No. 75192.  The ALJ finds Mr. Barrett’s testimony credible in this regard.

17. Staff seeks a $200 penalty per violation against Ralph Limousine as provided in Rule 12.5, 4 CCR 723-15.  

18. In order for Ralph Limousine to be charged the civil penalty, in addition to the violation of Commission rules found above, Staff must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Ralph Limousine has intentionally violated Commission rules.  See Rule 12.5, 4 CCR 723-15.  

19. In this case, Staff attempted to show that Ralph Limousine intentionally violated Commission rules in 2005 because he had been issued prior written notification of the same violations in 2002. See, 4 CCR 723-15-12.10.  Staff relied upon Exhibit 1, and sponsoring testimony, to demonstrate issuance of prior written notification for the same violations.   

20. At hearing, Mr. Barrett identified Exhibit 1 to be a Certification of Correction attached to the Transportation Safety and Compliance Review that was mailed on May 22, 2002.  Referred by Counsel to the third page of the exhibit, Mr. Barrett recited the violations appearing thereupon. 

21. A careful review of Exhibit 1 raises inexplicable questions.  The first page of the Exhibit reflects the Mr. Elsell’s signature dated May 24, 2002 as well as the stamp of the Pubic Utilities Commission acknowledging receipt.  The second page of the Exhibit, dated May 22, 2002, states that Ralph Limousine’s fleet is comprised of three vehicles and that two drivers were surveyed.  However, the third and fourth pages of Exhibit 1, stating violations and recommendations, are dated August 23, 2005 - - years after purportedly being mailed to Ralph Limousine.  

22. In response to questioning of counsel, Mr. Barrett testified that he prepared Exhibit 1 near the time of events appearing on them.  Pages 3 and 4 of Exhibit 1 being dated August 23, 2005, the evidence suggests that stated violations referenced in Exhibit 1 occurred near August 23, 2005 - - after the dates of violations alleged in CPAN No. 75192.

23. As stated above, the Commission has the burden of demonstrating a violation by a preponderance of the evidence.  Staff has failed to show issuance of the necessary prior written notice of the violations contained in CPAN No. 75192.  Thus, Exhibit 1 fails to show that Ralph Limousine intentionally violated these Safety Rules within the meaning of 4 CCR 723-15-12.10.  The balance of evidence fails to otherwise demonstrate intentional violations by Ralph Limousine.

IV. conclUSIONS

24. Staff has sustained its burden of proving the rule violation allegations contained in Counts 1 through 10 of CPAN No. 75192 by a preponderance of the evidence. 

25. While the ALJ finds violations of the rules in 2005, Staff has not met its burden to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that those violations were intentional by Ralph Limousine.  For this reason, CPAN No. 75192 must be dismissed.  The ALJ finds it troubling that Ralph Limousine did not demonstrate compliance with Commission rules, but that is not its burden in this docket.

V. ORDER

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Docket No. 05G-282EC, being a civil penalty assessment proceeding involving Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 75192 issued to Ralph Elsell, doing business as Ralph Limousine Service, is dismissed.  Docket No. 05G-282EC is closed.

2. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

3. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

4. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


G. HARRIS ADAMS
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge
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